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Boarding Houses 900

| would like to expand on an article that appeared in the Lake County News
Chronicle earlier this month. In 1899 Two Harbors was recognized as having a
population of 3,300 residents. With large numbers of transients travelling to the
mines and lumber camps, boarding houses figured significantly in the development
and economy of the community. In the discussion of boarding houses and hotels its
important to remember that conditions were far from what a guest may expect today.

In the spring of 1883 Agate Bay was a collection of
shanties and tents. One of the first significant dwellings
built by the railroad was the Iron Range House. It was
built specifically to house railroad employees. It was
located on the far western end of the vacant lot below
the Mallet Display. It was managed by Butler and Blake
but was affectionately k
Bl akeso. The house was bu
to make room for more beds. In the early days
boarders had to climb an exterior ladder to reach the
second story. The Iron Range House had 66 boarders
in 1899.

The Agate Bay House, again built by the railroad, would be built in June of 1883 and
later expanded to become the Lakeview Hotel. It would be moved to its current
location on 4" avenue and 8" st reet in the early 18905
increasing number of people arriving at the 5" Avenue Depot on the newly
completed Lake Division. In 1899 the Lakeview hotel had 47 residents.

The North Shore House was built by John Kinsella in 1884 on Whiskey Row. When
Thomas Sexton finally sold his last four acres in 1886 the hotel was relocated to the
corner of 1% Avenue and Poplar (6") Street. It is claimed that this was the first lot
sold in the new village of Two Harbors by the Minnesota Iron Company. Kinsella

bought a |l ot that had corner frontage ©of
include t he Lee Kee l aundry, t he Re x T hea

Bottling Works, Tait Photo Studio, and Bennatt Barber Shop. He would call this little
empire the Kinsella Block.

The following is an incomplete list of hotels and boarding houses and the number of
residents listed in Polks Rage Cities Directory 1900.

Charles Moberg Boarding house 13
Commercial Hotel 46
Ideal Hotel 17
Iron Range House 66
Lakeview Hotel 47
Linda Peterson House 5

North Shore House 48
Superior House 3

The Clifton 53
Tremont House 17
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In order to make ends meet if there was room for an extra
bed in someonebs house, it
families maintain households. Rent was from two bits a
day to $5.00 a week, depending upon the sleeping
accommodations and meals included.

People Boarding in Residences

Homes on 1% Avenue: 15 homes boarding 35 people
Homes on 2" Avenue: 26 homes boarding 49 people
Homes on 3" Avenue: 23homes boarding 54people
Homes on 4™ Avenue: 27 homes boarding 62 people
Homes on 5" Avenue: 27 homes boarding 63 people
Homes on 6" Avenue: 10 homes boarding 20 People
Homes on 7" Avenue: 7 homes boarding 9 people
Homes on 8" Avenue: 4 homes Boarding 5 people

: 2%
are “NAM

The Windsor Hotel

Maple (5™ Street 4 Homes boarding 6 people
Poplar (6™) Street: 7 homes boarding 11 people
Cedar (7™ Street: 7 homes boarding 11 people
Pine (8"‘2 Street: 5 homes boarding 6 people

Birch (9™ Street: 2 homes boarding 2 people
Edna G 1 person
Lighthouse Point 8 People
Coal Dock 4 People

Total 661 (20% of 3300)

The previous information does not include stats for the Moises Boarding House
YMCA. When it was turned over to the D&IRR Railroad
Employees Association it was expanded. The D&IR Club
House could house 48 people. There is a story about an
old railroad that lived out his life at the D&IR Clubhouse
and after his passing they discovered a chest under his
bed containing more than $200,000.00. He obviously had
more faith in the fire department than in the banks.

Boarding houses were not welcomed by everyone.
Thomas Owens was an investor in the Commercial and
later the Agate Bay Hotel. He was upset regarding the :
proliferation of ﬁunlicense
and sent several letters to the City Council demanding [
they take action to shut some down. The unlicensed
boarders he was referring to were private residences Svee or Swedish Hotel, later The Clifton
letting out rooms. Where the Moose is today.

Gunderson.

Two Harbor House Central Hotel 623 3rd Ave
8th St and 2nd Ave.

\Gundersons or the Eagle Hotel
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